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From: Barbara G. Sanders [barbaras@penning!onlaw.com] 
Sent: 
To: Filings@psc.state.fl.us 
cc: REILLY.STEVE@leg.state.fl.us; derrill@hoganlawfirm.com; mminton@deanmead.com; 

Friday, June 25,2010 4:19 PM 

jjouben@hernandocounty.us; freeves@tbaylaw.com; johnw@rsbattorneys.cm; Caroline Klancke; 
jrichards@pascocountyfl.net; martyd@rsbattorneys.com; Sidney W. Kilgore; gkirk@co.hernando.R.us; 
redwards@evansprop.com 
Docket Filing - Docket No. 090478-WS Subject: 

Attachments: M0tion.to.strike.hartman.direct.plus.depo.finaI.pdf 

In accordance with the electronic filing procedures of the Florida Public Service Commission, the following filing is 
made: 

a. The name, address, telephone number and e-mail for the person responsible for the filing is: 

William H. Hollimon 
Pennington, Moore, Wilkinson, Bell & Dunbar, P.A. 
215 South Monroe Street, Second Floor (32301) 
Post Office Box 10095 
Tallahassee, Florida 32302 
(850) 222-3533 
bhollimon@penningtonlaw~ 

This filing is made in Docket No. 090478-WS, In re: Application for original certificates for proposed 
water and wastewater system, in Hemando and Pasco Counties, and request for initial rates and charges, 
by Skyland Utilities, LLC. 

The document is filed on behalf of Pasco County. 

There are a total number of 50 pages in the document. 

The attached document is Pasco County's Motion to Strike. 

b. 

c. 

d. 

e. 

6/25/2010 



STATE OF FLORIDA 
PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

IN RE: APPLICATION OF SKYLAND 
UTILITIES, LLC, TO OPERATE A WATER 
AND WASTEWATER UTILITY IN 
HERNANDO AND PASCO COUNTIES, 
FLORIDA 

Case No.: 090478-WS 

MOTION TO STRIKE 

Pasco County (“Pasco”) a political subdivision of the State of Florida, pursuant to 

Rule 28-106.204, F.A.C., hereby moves to strike portions of the direct testimony of 

Gerald Hartman (“Hartman”), and accompanying exhibits, filed by Skyland Utilities, 

LLC (“Skyland”) on April 2,2010. In support of its motion Pasco states: 

Background 

1. On February 24,2010, the Commission entered its Order Establishing 

Procedure, Order No. PSC-10-0105-PCO-WS (“Order”), in this proceeding. 

2. Pursuant to the Order, Skyland was required to file its direct testimony on 

or before April 2,2010. On that day, Skyland filed its direct testimony - which, in its 

entirely, was provided by one witness, Gerald Hartman. Mr. Hartman’s testimony 

consisted of six pages of text and three exhibits: 1) his resume; 2) two PSC orders related 

to rates; and 3) Skyland’s application. 

3. On June 17,2010, Pasco took the deposition of Skyland witness Gerald 

Hartman. A copy of the deposition transcript is attached and references are made to the 

transcript as “Page -, line - - Page -, line -” in this motion. 
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Argument 

For administrative proceedings which affect substantial interests, the fundamental 

evidentiary standard is established by section 120.569(2)(g), Florida Statutes, which 

states 

[ilrrelevant, immaterial, or unduly repetitious evidence shall be excluded, 
but all other evidence of a type commonly relied upon by reasonably 
prudent persons in the conduct of their affairs shall be admissible, whether 
or not such evidence would be admissible in a trial in the courts of Florida. 
Any part of the evidence may be received in written form, and all 
testimony of parties and witnesses shall be made under oath. 

Although this section does not specifically make the Florida Evidence Code (“FEC”) 

applicable to this proceeding, the FEC does provide guidance as to the type of evidence 

relied upon by reasonably prudent persons. Indeed, the Commission often relies upon the 

FEC for guidance on evidentiary issues. 

Generally, the FEC recognizes two, broad forms of testimony: 1) expert opinion 

testimony; and 2) lay witness (fact) testimony. The witnesses providing such testimony 

are held to different foundational standards. Specifically, expert witnesses are allowed to 

rely upon facts and data of a type reasonably relied upon by like experts in formulating 

opinions, even thought the underlying facts and data themselves may not be admissible. 

See Sec. 90.704, Fla. Stat. For example, an expert can rely upon hearsay evidence to 

formulate an opinion, if the hearsay is of the type commonly relied upon by like experts. 

Thus, an expert on the cost of capital may rely upon information from a variety of 

sources of financial information, such as heresay information from credit rating agencies. 

However, it is “routinely recognized that an expert’s testimony ‘may not merely 

be used as a conduit for the introduction of the otherwise inadmissible evidence.’ Linn v. 

2 



Fossum, 946 So. 2d 1032, 1037-38 (Fla. 2006) (internal citations omitted). Thus, while 

the cost of capital expert may rely upon hearsay from credit rating agencies to form an 

opinion, the expert is prohibited from serving as the vehicle to admit these credit rating 

agency records into evidence. 

There are two primary rationales for this prohibition. First, “[wlhen an expert’s 

testimony acts as a conduit for inadmissible hearsay, the evidence is presented to the jury 

without affording the opposing party an opportunity to cross-examine and impeach the 

source of the hearsay.” Id. Second, “testimony that serves as a conduit for inadmissible 

evidence is inadmissible under section 90.403, Florida Statutes (2005), because its 

probative value is ‘substantially outweighed by the danger of unfair prejudice, confusion 

of issues [or] misleading the jury.”’ Id. (internal quotations omitted). 

As the Commission has recognized, there are two circumstances in which hearsay 

evidence is admissible in administrative proceedings. Order No. PSC-09-0034-PCO-E1, 

p. 2, Docket No. PSC-09-0034-PCO-EI. “First, it is admissible if it is used to supplement 

or explain other evidence. Second, it is admissible if it falls within an exception to the 

hearsay rule in the Evidence Code.” Zd. 

Expert testimony, however, is not always required. Section 90.702, Florida 

Statutes, states: 

If scientific, technical, or other specialized knowledge will assist the trier 
of fact in understanding the evidence or in determining a fact in issue, a 
witness qualified as an expert by knowledge, skill, experience, training, or 
education may testify about it in the form of an opinion; however, the 
opinion is admissible only if it can be applied to evidence at trial. 

The Commission, as the trier of fact in this proceeding, determines whether expert 

testimony is needed to help the Commission understand the evidence or make a factual 
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determination. The Commission is free to determine that some or all of the “expert” 

testimony offered in this preceding is not needed, or to determine that the offered 

testimony does not qualify as expert testimony. 

On the other hand, lay witnesses (those not supplying opinion testimony) may 

only testify from personal knowledge. Section 90.604, Florida Statutes, states in part, 

“_ . . a witness may not testify to a matter unless evidence is introduced which is 

sufficient to support a finding that the witness has personal knowledge of the matter.” 

Pasco asserts that portions of the direct testimony filed by Skyland witness 

Hartman should be stricken because it is either expert testimony “used as a conduit for 

the introduction of otherwise inadmissible evidence,” that otherwise does not meet either 

test for the admissibility of hearsay evidence, or it is lay testimony offered without 

personal knowledge. The specific portions Pasco seeks to strike are detailed below. 

Pasco also asserts that portions of the exhibits to Hartman’s direct testimony should 

likewise be stricken from the record 

1. Global ODinion 

Hartman is asked a global, catch all question at the beginning of his direct 

testimony: 

Q. Based upon your review of the application and associated documents, do you 
believe that such documents meet the requirements for regulation by the 
Florida Public Service Commission. 

Yes, they do. The territory proposed for service by the applicant, Skyland 
Utilities, LLC has a need for such services delineated in the application. 
These include potable and not-potable water and wastewater services to bulk 
exempt, bulk non-exempt, intensified agribusiness, residential and general 
service customers. A service request letter from Mr. J. Emmett Evans 111, 
Vice President of Evans Properties, Iuc., is contained in Appendix I. Mr. 
Ron Edwards, President of Evans Properties, has also included a letter 
supporting the application with a more general request for service. Evans 

A. 
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properties, Inc., owns all of the land within Skyland’s proposed service 
territory. The near term need for water and wastewater services for Skyland 
are several existing properties, intensified agribusiness and the first phase of 
development as detailed in Exhibits D and F and Appendix I of the 
application. I t  is anticipated that development will occur in five (5) separate 
phases as outlined in Appendix I. Because Skyland’s proposed service 
territory traverses county boundaries, the Florida Public Service 
Commission should be the entity to grant the requested water and 
wastewater certificates. 

Hartman’s response is not an expert opinion expressed by an expert witness. Rather, it is 

a recitation of “facts” and identification of documents contained in the “application and 

associated documents.” Because this is lay witness testimony, Hartman’s testimony must 

be based upon his personal knowledge. 

During his deposition, Hartman admitted that he did not draft the “service request 

letters” referred to, and did not know how he obtained a copy of the letters. @. 22, line 8 

- p.23, line 8; p.34, line 5 - p. 35, line 3; p 36, line 9 - 18). Hartman has no personal 

knowledge related to the “service request letters.” Further, Hartman has no personal 

knowledge of the specific service needs delineated. His knowledge is based upon the 

service request letters and meetings with Evans Properties. (p.40, line 3 - 18; p. 45, line 

7 - 15). Thus, this testimony is not based on Hartman’s personal knowledge and is 

inadmissible. Further, Hartman’s testimony is merely a conduit to introduce the hearsay 

statements of others. Hartman is not supplementing or explaining other evidence (be is 

the only witness) and no hearsay exception applies. 

2. Financial Ability 

On page 4, line 16, Hartman is asked about Skyland’s financial ability: 

Does Skyland have the financial ability to effectively implement and manage 
a utility system? 

Q. 
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A. Yes, as provided in Exhibit I of the application. As an affiliate of Evans 
Properties, Inc., Skyland has the financial backing to be a successful utility. 
Evans Properties, Inc., is a significant land-owner in Florida and bas been in 
the agribusiness industry for over 50 years. They have agreed to provide 
funding to Skyland. A copy of the funding agreement between Skyland and 
Evans can be found in Appendix VI1 of the application. 

Once again, Hartman’s testimony is not based upon his personal knowledge. In his 

deposition, Hartman admitted 1) the “funding agreement” was not drafted by Hartman 

or his firm; 2) Hartman had no personal knowledge of Evans Properties, Inc.’s finances; 

and 3) Hartman has not reviewed the confidential financial documents submitted to the 

Commission in this proceeding. @. 36, line 22 - p. 39, line 4; p.53, line 17 - p. 56, line 

11). Thus, Hartman has no personal knowledge and is not competent to testify on these 

issues. To the extent that Hartman is delivering expert testimony, Hartman is merely 

being used as a conduit to introduce the hearsay documents and statements of others 

Again, Hartman is not supplementing or explaining other evidence and no hearsay 

exception applies. Regardless of the form of this testimony, it should be stricken. 

3. Use of Land 

On page 5,  line 10, Hartman is asked about Skyland’s continued use of land 

Does Skyland have continued use of the land upon which the utility facilities 
are or will be located? 

Q. 

A. Yes, as provided in the application and supporting documents. Appendix IV 
and Appendix VI of the application contain lease agreements between Evans 
Properties, Inc., and Skyland giving them a long-term lease on the land 
where watdwastewater facilities will be located. 

Hartman’s response is not an expert opinion expressed by an expert witness. Rather, it is 

an identification of two lease agreements and a conclusory statement regarding these 
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lease agreements. Because this is lay witness testimony, Hartman’s testimony must be 

based upon his personal knowledge. 

In his deposition, Hartman admitted 1) he did not draft either of the referred to 

lease agreements; 2) he did not negotiate the agreement; and 3) he obtained copies of the 

agreement from counsel (p. 26, line 6 - p. 34, line 4). Yet once again, Hartman is being 

used as a conduit for the admission of hearsay documents and statements about which he 

has no personal knowledge. 

4. Documents Included in Application and Snonsored by Hartman 

Skyland’s application includes portions authored by Hartman (and his firm) and 

portions created by others. (p. 22, line 14 - p. 23, line 8). Specifically, documents not 

authored by Hartman include: 1) the Application includes service request letters 

(Appendix I); 2) the water lease agreement (Appendix IV); 3) the wastewater lease 

agreement (Appendix VI); and the funding agreement (Appendix VII). 

As detailed above, Hartman is not the author of any of these documents and has 

no personal knowledge of these documents. Thus, as an initial matter, Hartman is not 

qualified to authenticate these documents. Further, these documents are all hearsay that 

do not supplement or explain any other testimony. Finally, and notwithstanding the lack 

of authentification, there is no hearsay exception in the Evidence Code that would make 

these documents admissible.’ Thus, these documents should be stricken. 

Even if these documents were construed as business records, which they are not, 1 

Hartman is not competent to, and has not, established the foundational elements 
necessary for this exception. See King v. Auto Supply ofJupiter, Znc., 917 So. 2d 1015 
(Fla. 1%‘ DCA 2006) (“[tlhe foundational elements for admission under business records 
exception to hearsay rule compel a showing that the business record was: (1) made at or 
near the time of the event; (2) by or from information transmitted by a person with 
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Rule 28-106.303(2) Conference Statement 

Counsel for Pasco conferred with counsel for Skyland regarding the relief 

requested in this motion. Counsel for Pasco is authorized to represent that Skyland 

objects to the relief requested herein. 

Praver for Relief 

For all the reasons stated above, Pasco hereby moves for entry or an order striking 

the testimony of Gerald Hartman identified above and striking the portions of Exhibit 

GCH-1 identified above. 

Submitted this 25" day of June, 2010. 

/s/ William tl. IIollimon 
WILLIAM 11. IIOLLIMON 
Florida Bar No. 0104868 
PENNINGTON MOORE WILKINSON 

BELL & DUNBAR, P.A. 
215 South Monroe Street, 2"d Floor (32301) 
Post Office Box 10095 
Tallahassee, Florida 32302-2095 
Telephone: (850) 222-3533 
Facsimile: (850) 222-2126 
bhollimon@penningtonlaw.com 

knowledge; (3) kept in the course of a regularly conducted business activity; and (4) that 
it was the regular practice of that business to make such a record"). 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that on June 25,2010, a copy of the foregoing Motion to 

Strike was served, via e-mail and U.S. Mail, to the following: 

Caroline Klancke, Esquire 
Office of the General Counsel 
Florida Public Service Commission 
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850 

Darrill Lee McAteer, Esquire 
City Attorney 
20 South Broad Street 
Brooksville, Florida 34601 

Geoffrey Kirk, Esquire 
Jon Jouben, Esquire 
Garth Coller, Esquire 
20 North Main Street, Suite 462 
Brooksville, Florida 34601 

Ronald Edwards, Manager 
660 Beachland Boulevard, Suite 301 
Vero Beach, Florida 32963-1708 

John L. Wharton, Esquire 
Rose Sundstrom & Bentley, LLP 
2548 Blairstone Pines Drive 
Tallahassee, Florida 32301 

Frederick T. Reeves, Esquire 
Frederick T. Reeves, P.A. 
5709 Tidalwave Drive 
New Port Richey, Florida 34652 

Michael Minton, Esquire 
1903 South 25th Street, Suite 200 
Fort Pierce, Florida 34947 

Joseph Richards, Esquire 
West Pasco County Government Center 
7530 Little Road, Suite 34 
New Port Richey, Florida 34654 

/s/ William H. Hollimon 
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BEFORE THE Florida Public Service Commission 

In Re: Application for original certificate for  
Proposed water and wastewater system, in 
Hernando and Pasco Counties, and request for 
Initial rates and charges, by Skyland Utilities, 
LLC . 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

DEPOSITION OF: 

DATE : 

TIME: 

PLACE : 

STENOGRAPHICALLY 
REPORTED BY: 

GERALD C. HARTMAN, PE, BCEE, ASA 

JUNE 17, 2010 

8:31 A.M. - 1:44 P.M. 

301 N. PINE STREET 
ORLANDO, FLORIDA 32801 

SANDRA NARUP 
REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL REPORTER & 
FLORIDA PROFESSIONAL REPORTER 
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